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  1 P R O C E E D I N G S

  2 (Whereupon, all parties are present, and hearing 

  3 convened 9:30 a.m.)

  4 THE DEPUTY CLERK: Your Honor, calling the case 

  5 Washington Hospital Center Corporation versus DC Charter 

  6 Health Inc., civil action number 9510-2012.  

  7 Will the parties identify yourselves for the 

  8 record?

  9 MR. BOLDEN: Your Honor, on behalf of DC Charter 

 10 Health Plan the Defendant, A. Scott Bolden, good morning.

 11 MR. WAXMAN: Good morning, Your Honor, Mark Waxman 

 12 on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

 13 MR. BOLDEN: Your Honor, if I may also with me is 

 14 Larry Sher who is a colleague of mine at Reed Smith and 

 15 Carlos Valdivia, also a colleague.

 16 MR. EDMONDSON: Your Honor, I'm Joseph Edmondson, 

 17 I'm with the Foley and Lardner DC Office, and this is Lee 

 18 Bergman, Corporate Counsel, for Med Star Health 

 19 Corporation.

 20 THE COURT: Well, I appreciate you're coming here 

 21 across the street.  I spoke with Judge Mencher yesterday 

 22 evening and he thought, and I completely agree, it really 

 23 makes more sense for me to address the TRO because the case 

 24 is on my calendar.

 25 I've read the application for the TRO, the 
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  1 opposition and the partial motion to dismiss.  I've looked 

  2 briefly at what we call Med Star's reply.  I then looked -- 

  3 I haven't had a chance to look at, carefully, at the motion 

  4 for expedited discovery and the reply.  I will.  

  5 I don't think there's going to be any objection to 

  6 grant the motion for leave to file a brief well under the 

  7 page limit.  So, that's done.

  8 Let me -- I mean I understand the four-prong test, 

  9 but I want to start not talking about the merits but about 

 10 the relief that Med Star's requesting.  And these are going 

 11 to be questions at least initially mostly for Mr. Waxman, 

 12 Mr. Edmondson, whoever wants to answer.

 13 As I understand it, I mean the driving force 

 14 behind the TRO request is that Med Star, as it puts it, 

 15 does not want to be relegated to the status of a general 

 16 creditor.  One of the things I don't understand is how the 

 17 relief you're asking for the TRO would change that, if I 

 18 impose a constructive trust, and I need to understand 

 19 Charter's arguments on that score.  If they become 

 20 insolvent and enter bankruptcy you're still going to be a 

 21 general creditor.  It isn't going to effect -- you're not 

 22 going to have any higher priority in any bankruptcy 

 23 proceeding.  I just don't understand how the relief you're 

 24 requesting solves the problem you say you're facing.

 25 MR. WAXMAN: I think there's a couple things going 
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  1 on here to address.  Now, the first is we provided services 

  2 for their beneficiaries and we continue to do so on an 

  3 ongoing basis.

  4 THE COURT: Well, okay, then I guess I'm a little 

  5 -- because I thought on December 4th you terminated the 

  6 contract.

  7 MR. WAXMAN: We did.  And for the ninety-day period 

  8 following the termination of the contract we're required to 

  9 continue to provide under a continuation of care obligation 

 10 with respect to those who are in our hospitals and those 

 11 who are undergoing and ongoing treatments by our physicians 

 12 for a defined period of time. So, we have claims that would 

 13 be due for a period pre-filing or pre-termination depending 

 14 on what we see the appropriate benchmark, which are being 

 15 submitted and which should be paid and claims which will be 

 16 submitted for services we are rendering and should also be 

 17 paid.  

 18 So, the concern what we have is claims that will 

 19 be paid in the ordinary course during any particular time 

 20 period up through and including today, tomorrow and the 

 21 next day.  As a result of the recoupment what's happening 

 22 is that those claims will be paid and the rehabilitator 

 23 says his job and their job is to continue to pay claims in 

 24 the ordinary course.  What's happening as a result of the 

 25 recoupment is as they process the claims they are taking 
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  1 the money.

  2 THE COURT: But you're not asking me to order 

  3 Charter to pay your claims as you say they become due.  

  4 You're asking me to impose a constructive trust.  And my 

  5 question was how does that effect your status as a general 

  6 creditor which you say is one of the primary harms you want 

  7 to avoid?

  8 MR. WAXMAN: Because there's two reasons.  One is 

  9 they're required -- whether you order it or not, you don't 

 10 have to order them to continue to pay our claims every 

 11 thirty days from the date they're submitted, that's what's 

 12 required under the DC law. The issue is whether there's any 

 13 money to do that.  And through the recoupments what they're 

 14 doing is taking the money that they would be paying us, we 

 15 wouldn't need to be a general creditor because they would 

 16 be paying our claims on an ongoing basis under DC law, but 

 17 for this recoupment theory that says, well, we're not going 

 18 to pay your claims on a thirty-day basis, we're going to 

 19 just take the money and use it for other things.  Like 

 20 building up the sale value or whatever else they're going 

 21 to do with it.

 22 But what we recognize is if there is a bankruptcy 

 23 filed, and we think that may be imminent, we're entitled to 

 24 get paid our claims for services being rendered on an 

 25 ongoing basis.
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  1 THE COURT: Whether I grant the application or not, 

  2 in a bankruptcy proceeding you'll be a general creditor, a 

  3 general unsecured creditor, correct?  

  4 MR. WAXMAN: Yes.  But until they file, we don't 

  5 know if they're filing today, tomorrow or the next, but 

  6 until they file, as a result of these recoupments they're 

  7 not paying us what they owe us in the ordinary course to 

  8 avoid our being a general creditor at all.

  9 So, in a sense they're creating a preference for 

 10 themselves and somebody else as opposed to paying our 

 11 claims for the services we're rendering today.

 12 THE COURT: Let me ask a different question about 

 13 the relief.  The order would effect, and I think I'm 

 14 quoting from the proposed order, funds that are dedicated 

 15 or properly should be dedicated to payment of Med Star 

 16 claims.

 17 MR. WAXMAN: Right.

 18 THE COURT: If I'm the CFO of Charter, what am I 

 19 supposed to do? What -- what money, what cash in which 

 20 account am I required under this order not to touch unless 

 21 Charter comes to me and asks me for permission?

 22 MR. WAXMAN: I guess I'm not sure by the last part 

 23 about what you said.  I think what you're saying is if we 

 24 say you have money -- we don't know all of their accounts.  

 25 But you're saying you have money to pay claims on an 
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  1 ordinary basis, we want to you keep paying claims and have 

  2 the money available to do that which is what you said you 

  3 would do.

  4 THE COURT: I'm reading the third ordering clause 

  5 on your proposed TRO.  A constructive trust shall be 

  6 imposed on all funds that Defendant funds are dedicated or 

  7 properly should be dedicated to the payment of Med Star's 

  8 pending claims for the payment of claims or issues in 

  9 dispute, until the conclusion of this action, such that the 

 10 Defendant shall not dispose of any such funds without first 

 11 seeking permission from this Court by motion with notice to 

 12 Plaintiffs.

 13 So, what I understand it you're asking me to 

 14 freeze some accounts and that basically -- and I'm asking, 

 15 well, I don't know what accounts you're asking me to freeze 

 16 and I'm not going to issue an order unless it gives the 

 17 Defendant reasonable notice of what accounts are being 

 18 frozen.  

 19 And just to give you fair notice, my next question 

 20 is going to be how am I supposed to decide whether to grant 

 21 a request to release some of those funds and why should I 

 22 be making that decision when the District of Columbia 

 23 Government has afforded a receiver or rehabilitator to do 

 24 that?

 25 But my first question is what -- what funds are 
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  1 you asking me to freeze? And it's not just the funds that 

  2 are dedicated, but properly should be dedicated to 

  3 payment.  I just -- I think I have a responsible 

  4 responsibility if I'm going to issue a TRO to make it clear 

  5 so that the Defendant knows exactly what it's supposed to 

  6 do and how it's supposed to do it.

  7 Now, I don't understand what the practical effect 

  8 of the TRO you requested would be.

  9 MR. WAXMAN: I think the practical effect would be 

 10 for those funds which they're holding for the ongoing 

 11 payment of claims.

 12 THE COURT: But we don't -- let me -- have you 

 13 presented any evidence that there's some funds that are 

 14 dedicated to the payment of ongoing claims, that there's 

 15 some account that Charter has established? I mean I'm not 

 16 -- I am not now and never have been a MediCaid lawyer, I 

 17 don't know how that's done.  But from what I do know, I 

 18 would be surprised, you know, if they're separate accounts, 

 19 but I don't know.

 20 But what I do know is I haven't seen, I don't 

 21 think unless I've missed it, any evidence from Med Star 

 22 that there is some account that is dedicated.  Again, your 

 23 proposed order says not only that it is dedicated, but 

 24 properly should be dedicated.

 25 So, I mean to me if I were the CFO and I was 
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  1 concerned about not being held in contempt of the TRO I 

  2 would basically say I'm going to freeze all of the bank 

  3 accounts.  I don't know if I can pay salaries as they 

  4 become due.  I don't know how -- I don't -- what can be -- 

  5 what other bills can be paid and what bills can't be paid 

  6 without coming in?

  7 MR. WAXMAN: We don't have the name of the 

  8 particular account to which they're funding the ongoing 

  9 payment of claims.  We need some discovery in order to get 

 10 a specific account.  But the rehabilitator has said in his 

 11 report and even Mr. Christian in his that they are 

 12 ostensibly funding the ongoing payment of claims out of 

 13 funds that they have available for that purpose.

 14 THE COURT: Okay.  So -- 

 15 MR. WAXMAN: Absent the --

 16 THE COURT: -- we've identified that account and 

 17 Charter comes to me and says funds that either have been or 

 18 properly should be dedicated and Charter says, well, we've 

 19 got you want money from us on an ongoing basis, we have 

 20 other suppliers that want to be paid, we have employees 

 21 that want to be paid, we have payroll taxes that need to be 

 22 paid, we have real estate taxes that need to be paid, we 

 23 want to you to author -- and I'm supposed to then decide, 

 24 okay, I think that use of the cash you have on hand is a 

 25 higher and better use than holding it in reserve in case 
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  1 you end up winning on this case or there's some pot of 

  2 money that you'll be a general creditor with a claim for if 

  3 Charter goes into bankruptcy.

  4 MR. WAXMAN: So, let me understand the challenge, 

  5 and it feels like the right response is we need to go 

  6 determine the precise accounts to do that, that's number 

  7 one.

  8 Number two is in another sense they owe all of the 

  9 claims in thirty days.  So, to the extent that there's a 

 10 choice to be made, the DC Government's already made that 

 11 choice they say we want you to pay those claims in thirty 

 12 days.

 13 THE COURT: Does Charter also have claims -- I 

 14 assume there are doctors who provide services to these a 

 15 hundred and ten thousand MediCaid enrollees who are not 

 16 hospitalized.  So, I mean there are other doctors and 

 17 health care providers who are knocking on Charter's door 

 18 and saying we want to get paid.

 19 MR. WAXMAN: Sure.

 20 THE COURT: Do you -- is it your position that you 

 21 get paid before them? They have a right to be paid in 

 22 thirty days.  How do I decide if I enter this TRO, and if 

 23 you're right, that there's not enough money to pay anybody, 

 24 and according to the report that the special deputies, the 

 25 rehabilitator filed with Judge Wright, then there's the six 
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  1 million dollars kind of capital and surpluses at the end of 

  2 last year.  I'm just trying to understand how it would 

  3 work.

  4 MR. WAXMAN: So, what I understand I think in order 

  5 to define an account we need to go get more information.  

  6 But what I think you can --

  7 THE COURT: Okay.  We define an account and so it's 

  8 used not just to pay Med Star, it's used to pay doctors, 

  9 it's used to pay clinics, it's used -- you know, how do 

 10 I. -- 

 11 MR. WAXMAN: So that --

 12 THE COURT: Do you have any reason to believe that 

 13 there's just one account that's dedicated to Med Star and 

 14 that nobody else gets paid from it?

 15 MR. WAXMAN: I have a reason to believe that there 

 16 is an account from which they pay claims and that a portion 

 17 of that --

 18 THE COURT: Just by Med Star or claims for any 

 19 providers?  

 20 MR. WAXMAN: That I don't know.  But we want to go 

 21 find out.  But the part that to me is discreet is, and 

 22 could be focused on, is the amount of money they recouped 

 23 from us in payments they were going to pay us, that amount 

 24 of money should be set aside, either put in a trust and 

 25 they ought to be told go forward, don't do it.  That's 
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  1 money they took from us. That money is discreet, they know 

  2 what they took from us.  You could impose a trust on that.

  3 THE COURT: The amount of the money is discreet.

  4 MR. WAXMAN: Uh?  

  5 THE COURT: The amount of money can be calculated, 

  6 it can be calculated now or it can be calculated, you know, 

  7 after trial, if we have a trial.

  8 MR. WAXMAN: If there's anything left after the 

  9 point of the motion.

 10 So, for purposes of your question if there is a 

 11 very discreet amount of money that they took from us, 

 12 they've indicated they know how much it is, it could be the 

 13 subject of a trust to say, hey, you took that money from 

 14 them, I'm not going to let you disburse it to all those 

 15 other people, you are going to pay it.  I'm not going to 

 16 let you give it to other people for the services that they 

 17 provided, I want you to hold the money until we can figure 

 18 out, on the merits, whether you're entitled to take that 

 19 money back or not.

 20 THE COURT: Well, in regards to the next question I 

 21 promised to ask you which is why should I be making those 

 22 decisions instead of the rehabilitator or a special deputy? 

 23 I mean they were appointed to basically make sure that 

 24 Charter is operating responsibly, that its cash flow is 

 25 managed properly.  I mean if I'm deciding, you know, who 
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  1 ought to -- what MediCaid providers ought to get paid and 

  2 in what order, isn't that -- how do my responsibilities 

  3 relate to the responsibilities of the rehabilitator?  If 

  4 the rehabilitator's doing his job properly, why do I need 

  5 to do it?

  6 MR. WAXMAN: So, the rehabilitator made an 

  7 appearance in this case, filed a declaration and took no 

  8 responsibility for the determination of this dispute, made 

  9 no objections to --

 10 THE COURT: Well, actually he did.  He more or 

 11 less -- he agreed at least with some of the positions that 

 12 Charter has taken.  I mean I will give you -- that the tone 

 13 of his affidavit about the financial situation of Charter 

 14 is a little bit more positive than the tone of the report 

 15 that he filed before Judge Wright.  All of the challenges 

 16 that he discussed in the report to Judge Wright don't 

 17 figure.

 18 And I'm not -- I mean I can understand, let me put 

 19 it this way, why Med Star is nervous about whether it's 

 20 ultimately going to get paid.  But my -- but I'm focused 

 21 here on whether I ought to grant some emergency relief in 

 22 part.  I mean that's -- because I understand that Med Star 

 23 is facing challenges that I'm concerned about entering an 

 24 order that would -- I was going to say step on the toes of 

 25 the rehabilitator, that's really not the point, but that 
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  1 would make it more difficult for the rehabilitator to do 

  2 his job.

  3 And, indeed, if I enter an order that kind of 

  4 makes other creditors nervous that could jeopardize the 

  5 sale, which you argue and the rehabilitator seems to think 

  6 is the one thing that could provide Charter with the 

  7 capital and other resources it needs to remain viable, it's 

  8 actually going to end up hurting you.  

  9 If I enter an order that makes the rehabilitator's 

 10 job more easy -- I mean more difficult that, at least some 

 11 level, hurts you.

 12 MR. WAXMAN: So, the rehabilitator, A, had the 

 13 ability to come in and stay this case entirely under the 

 14 statutes that authorizes the rehabilitator's actions.  The 

 15 rehabilitator's could have gotten involved in the case, 

 16 come in and said you know something, I don't want this case 

 17 to go forward for all the reasons that you've just said, 

 18 and chose not to do that.  

 19 So, the answer, one answer to your question which 

 20 I think is kind of a direct answer is if the rehabilitator 

 21 wanted to assert his authority or the rehabilitator wanted 

 22 to say, you know, this is screwing up the works.  The 

 23 rehabilitator had the authority to come in here and do 

 24 that, and chose not to.

 25 But what the rehabilitator actually did was say 
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  1 we've got two parties, go ahead and litigate it, I'll tell 

  2 you some facts that might be helpful.  But the 

  3 rehabilitator didn't say either, A, this is going to 

  4 prevent a sale, or B, I'm just staying the case which I 

  5 have the authority under my statutes to do.  The 

  6 rehabilitator said go at it, essentially.  

  7 So, to your point if the rehabilitator really felt 

  8 that this was going to gum up the works, the rehabilitator 

  9 should have come in and have said so, but he didn't do it.  

 10 What the rehabilitator did do, and I completely agree with 

 11 sort of your characterization, is that the unbiased report 

 12 said, you know, these guys are in serious trouble for a lot 

 13 of reasons we can't get into, I don't know if they're going 

 14 to make it, which the auditor's also said I don't know if 

 15 they're going to make it.

 16 So, I don't think the rehabilitator has made the 

 17 decision, at least as of today, not to get involved and say 

 18 if you guys --

 19 THE COURT: Well, I'll start with the report, I'm 

 20 looking at page eight paragraph eight on other matters, the 

 21 rehabilitator has also authorized the defense of any 

 22 litigation including this case for injunctive relief 

 23 growing out of Charter contractual audit of claims paid by 

 24 those two entities, to Med Star.

 25 MR. WAXMAN: So, that is exactly what I'm saying.  
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  1 The rehabilitator said go ahead, litigate the case.  Didn't 

  2 say stop, it's going to mess me up.  Didn't say don't go 

  3 litigate the case, it's going to interfere with the 

  4 administration.  It didn't say it's going to interfere with 

  5 the sale.

  6 I read that as saying I've authorized you to go 

  7 get involved and litigate the case, and I take it exactly 

  8 at face value.  And --

  9 THE COURT: Well, does it -- if I freeze some yet 

 10 unknown account with some as of now unknown amount of money 

 11 in it, isn't that bound to complicate the work of the 

 12 rehabilitator?  

 13 MR. WAXMAN: A, I don't think so because at the end 

 14 of the day that's our money.  You're not adversely 

 15 effecting other people.  

 16 Absent that --

 17 THE COURT: But the whole argument that the 

 18 financial difficulty is that Charter doesn't have enough 

 19 money to pay everybody it owes.  You say it's your money, 

 20 you know, some physician would say, no, that's my money.  

 21 The employees would say, no, that's my money.  The DC tax 

 22 assessor would say, no, that's my money.  And, you know, 

 23 unless they get -- I mean one way to read the report to 

 24 Judge Wright is, you know, unless this sale is completed 

 25 and there's a substantial infusion of cash, it's going to 
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  1 implode and a lot of creditors aren't going to get paid a 

  2 hundred cents on the dollar.

  3 So, it's not your money -- it's not your money any 

  4 is -- any more than it is the money of other general 

  5 creditors who is the premise of your application recognizes 

  6 stand equal before the law, at least before a Federal 

  7 bankruptcy law.

  8 MR. WAXMAN: Well, in one respect -- let me come 

  9 back to -- one respect which has to do with the claims and 

 10 services that we're providing today, and the claims and 

 11 services we provided yesterday, which is given the 

 12 unlimited power, absent the restraining order on 

 13 recoupment, we're obligated to provide those services, and, 

 14 ostensibly, get paid nothing based upon a discretionary act 

 15 by the plan that says, oh, yeah, you provide the services 

 16 anyway and we're not going to pay you because we're 

 17 recouping.  I don't think that that kind of thing is 

 18 equitable to us as opposed to anybody else. And yet, 

 19 they're saying, no, we have an unlimited right to recoup 

 20 based on -- I'll just say charitably -- a disputed theory 

 21 so you guys can keep rendering services to the members and 

 22 the citizens of the District for nothing.

 23 And the first part of our relief says we want you 

 24 to follow the law and pay us in thirty days like the 

 25 District of Columbia says you should and we don't think 
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  1 pending resolution of this dispute you ought to be able to 

  2 arbitrarily say, oh, no, we're offsetting whatever we might 

  3 owe you for taking care of business today with some sort of 

  4 recoupment theory, which is apparently what they're 

  5 arguing.  There is an unlimited power to recoup based on 

  6 the fact that they owe us money and have created a theory 

  7 to take it themselves.

  8 THE COURT: Well, at one point in your papers you 

  9 express a concern that Charter is dissipating assets.  What 

 10 evidence do you have that there's any dissipation of 

 11 assets, notwithstanding the involvement of the 

 12 rehabilitator?

 13 MR. WAXMAN: Reading the rehabilitator's report, A, 

 14 it sounds like nobody can figure out where any money is 

 15 going because you can't -- 

 16 THE COURT: Well, that's -- I understood that the 

 17 dissipating would be an ongoing problem.  The rehabilitator 

 18 said there are problems figuring out where money has gone 

 19 in the past.  But I understood this to be that your concern 

 20 is, which I will say seems inconsistent with the claim that 

 21 the kind of overwriting part of Charter is to make its 

 22 financial conditions look better than it really is and hold 

 23 onto cash, minimize debts so that it will appear more 

 24 attractive to potential buyers than, perhaps, it should.  

 25 But I can't -- the TRO is supposed to prevent continuing 
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  1 harm.  What monies have been dissipated in the past, and 

  2 that's obviously not an issue to me, I can't do anything 

  3 about through a TRO.

  4 My question is, you know, if there were some kind 

  5 of -- if there was evidence, and I don't even think there 

  6 is an obligation that, notwithstanding, the involvement of 

  7 the rehabilitator, Charter is claiming invalid claims by 

  8 physicians or whatever, and, you know, then maybe, and it's 

  9 a big maybe, because I understand, you know, about kind of 

 10 whether economic loss can be irreparable injury.  But I -- 

 11 let me just see if I can give you --

 12 MR. WAXMAN: Well, I think if I may, the TRO is 

 13 really focused on recoupment.  The ongoing exposure we have 

 14 as a result of recoupment you're not getting paid for 

 15 services we're providing.

 16 THE COURT: But you say on page twenty giving the 

 17 very substantial likelihood that the Defendant will be 

 18 liquidated in light of its insolvancy.  Well, I think the 

 19 best evidence of insolvancy today is the affidavit of the 

 20 special deputy who says they can pay their bills today as 

 21 they come due.  It there maybe a dispute as to that.  Med 

 22 Star must be protected from the dissipation of assets that 

 23 could render Defendant judgement proof which in turn would 

 24 necessarily leave Med Star with no adequate remedy of law 

 25 as a result of this litigation.
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  1 So, my question was what is the on -- is there any 

  2 evidence of ongoing dissipation of funds, notwithstanding 

  3 the involvement of the rehabilitator?

  4 MR. WAXMAN: I think the biggest issue on the 

  5 financial side, I think if I were to summarize it, was the 

  6 thirty million dollar capital shortfall on the statutory 

  7 required money.  And the question and the nature of the 

  8 fourteen million on the balance sheet as to whether that 

  9 number is understated by another fourteen.

 10 So, I think the biggest issue is, is there going 

 11 to be anything left -- we don't know what's going on here  

 12 day-to-day other than they appear to be incredibly short on 

 13 funds in order to survive.

 14 THE COURT: I also want to ask about the 

 15 arbitration issue which I understand it only goes to, I 

 16 think, the hospital services agreement.

 17 MR. WAXMAN: One of them.

 18 THE COURT: One of them with Washington Hospital 

 19 Center, now with Georgetown.

 20 All I had to a chance to do before the hearing is 

 21 I just got it a couple minutes before we started was in 

 22 your reply you said in your Federal cases that 

 23 notwithstanding arbitration clause there is at least some 

 24 room to grant injunctive relief.  

 25 MR. WAXMAN: The --
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  1 THE COURT: I mean, obviously, I haven't had a 

  2 chance to look at those cases.  I mean our -- have you -- 

  3 have you started -- there's a process if you invoke the 

  4 arbitration provision each side is thirty days with 

  5 designated arbitrator then those two have fifteen days to 

  6 pick a third.  

  7 Have you started that process?

  8 MR. WAXMAN: We have not started the process.  It's 

  9 up to them if they want to start that process.

 10 THE COURT: Well, why -- but you're the one who say 

 11 you're getting stiffed.  You have a dispute under the 

 12 agreement.  I mean they've raised this as a defense, 

 13 failure to arbitrate.  They're saying you've asserted a 

 14 claim, you agree to take it to binding arbitration, and you 

 15 haven't done that.

 16 MR. WAXMAN: So, the case is -- 

 17 THE COURT: So, the ball is in your court.

 18 MR. WAXMAN: So, that cases are clear that while -- 

 19 first of all, the ball isn't in our court, either party 

 20 could waive that clause to litigate.  They don't want -- 

 21 it's their choice, not ours.

 22 THE COURT: Well, we now know what their choice is, 

 23 they've invoked the arbitration clause.

 24 MR. WAXMAN: We agree.  And our view is that's 

 25 fine, but the cases are clear that while you're heading off 
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  1 to arbitration there's still the ability to get injunctive 

  2 relief to reserve that which you're arbitrating about.

  3 THE COURT: But that's why I asked the question I 

  4 did, because again I maybe preserve the status quo while 

  5 you're heading off to arbitration, but you're saying you're 

  6 not heading off to arbitration, if I enter a TRO --

  7 MR. WAXMAN: Well, responding to that, we haven't 

  8 responded to this demand which came in, we have to make a 

  9 decision as to whether we're obligated to or not, but if 

 10 you enter an order saying stop recouping so that they can 

 11 continue to get paid for the services they're rendering, 

 12 that's not going to preclude an arbitration, that just says 

 13 whatever monies that are in dispute they got to preserve 

 14 it.  That's why --

 15 THE COURT: I mean I looked at it briefly it's a 

 16 short arbitration clause.  Is there anything that would 

 17 preclude the arbitrators from granting injunctive relief 

 18 pending, you know, pending the final resolution of the 

 19 arbitration.

 20 MR. WAXMAN: I don't know if there's any 

 21 arbitration clause about injunctive relief.  But while 

 22 we're determining whether both parties are going to 

 23 arbitrate and who the arbitrators are we're rendering 

 24 services every day for which we may not be paid.  And so to 

 25 preserve that while the arbitration issues get started is 

23



  1 well within the Court's jurisdiction, that's what the cases 

  2 that we provided say.  

  3 So, you're not interfering with an arbitration, 

  4 you're not making a final decision about an arbitration, 

  5 you are saying I'm going to preserve the status quo, I'm 

  6 not going to let you continue to take their money while you 

  7 guys go work out that dispute.

  8 THE COURT: But if I were to go that route, like I 

  9 said I haven't had a chance to read any of the cases, it 

 10 seems to me the most I could do is say I'm going to 

 11 preserve the status quo until the arbitrators have been 

 12 appointed and you can ask them for some relief pending a 

 13 final resolution, and I set a deadline, you know, for you 

 14 to start, you know, the arbitration process.

 15 Because, otherwise, I will -- I mean I would be 

 16 undermining -- I'm supposed to -- it seems to me my 

 17 responsibility, even if I have jurisdiction in some sense 

 18 to do something, would be to make my intervention as 

 19 limited as possible so I don't interfere with the parties' 

 20 agreement to have this all resolved through arbitration and 

 21 not through litigation in a courtroom.

 22 MR. WAXMAN: Well, your order would continuously be 

 23 limited to what the arbitration clause apply to, not to the 

 24 contract that it didn't.

 25 THE COURT: I understand.  Out of curiosity -- 
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  1 well, maybe it's a more than idle curiosity.  I mean I 

  2 didn't have a sense about what percentage of the claims 

  3 involve Washington Hospital Center versus Georgetown, is it 

  4 fifty/fifty, seventy-five/twenty-five?  I'm just trying to 

  5 get -- does -- I'll put it this way, how much of the 

  6 dispute is going to be resolved through binding 

  7 arbitration? 

  8 Or put it in these terms, of the twenty-eight 

  9 million dollars that you say Charter owes how much is owed 

 10 by Washington Hospital -- how much is owed to Washington 

 11 Hospital Center and how much to Georgetown?  

 12 MR. WAXMAN: I think we've got the numbers, there's 

 13 twenty-nine arbitrable and four and-a-half on the other 

 14 side.

 15 THE COURT: I'm sorry?  

 16 MR. WAXMAN: Twenty-nine million, plus/minus -- 

 17 THE COURT:  Okay.

 18 MR. WAXMAN:  -- would be if there were 

 19 arbitration, subject to arbitration, and four and-a-half 

 20 million would not, approximately.

 21 THE COURT: So, over eighty percent of the money at 

 22 issue is going to be resolved by the arbitrator?  

 23 MR. WAXMAN: Potentially.

 24 So, to your point we'd have to get there at a 

 25 decision -- the arbitrator has to say, yes, that's my 
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  1 decision and I'm going to make it, which takes sixty days, 

  2 ninety days.  And again we'd like there -- even if we went 

  3 that route, we still would like to get pay along the way 

  4 for what we're doing today.

  5 THE COURT: Oh, I understand that.

  6 MR. WAXMAN: I'm not talking about the lawyers.  

  7 I'm talking about the doctors.

  8 MR. BOLDEN: I want everybody to get paid.

  9 MR. WAXMAN: Mainly -- recognizing your comment, 

 10 you still have to get -- you still have to get there.

 11 THE COURT: Well, let me -- on my agenda so far, 

 12 let me -- I mean I hope it's obvious that I've read the 

 13 papers that both sides have submitted reasonably and 

 14 carefully, I don't want you to repeat anything, and I'll 

 15 give Mr. Bolden the same opportunity.  

 16 Is there any other, you know, arguments you want 

 17 to make, points you want to emphasize?

 18 MR. WAXMAN: I think there are two.  And I 

 19 appreciate the thoughtfulness of the questions because I 

 20 mean this is not the easiest case in the world.  

 21 But one is if we look back at where we are today, 

 22 it's entirely of Charter's making.  We submit the claims, 

 23 they decide what to pay.  Knowing the issues, they decided 

 24 to pay us what they did, and now have come along later and 

 25 said knowing the issues and knowing that we paid you what 
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  1 we did, and knowing whatever the dispute was, we paid X 

  2 amount, that we've now come in and they've said after X 

  3 period of time, oh, no, we now changed our mind and we're 

  4 going to take that money back.

  5 So, the whole notion that some how they're 

  6 entitled to take advantage of their own wrongdoing has to 

  7 weigh into the equities of this.

  8 To which the other piece is when we look at the 

  9 ability to recoup it isn't cited set, there is no authority 

 10 to do it, and when we think about where the equities are, 

 11 and I hate to go back to it but it is so important, we're 

 12 the one providing services for their members.  There is no 

 13 inequity to them whatsoever and they didn't cite any.  The 

 14 rehabilitator, to Your Honor's question, didn't cite any, 

 15 and it says stop recouping the money and pay these people 

 16 on their claims.

 17 So, if you look at where the equity is and who may 

 18 be around to resolve the dispute at the end there's no 

 19 equity on the Charter side whatsoever.  And they're the 

 20 ones who may not be around so they shouldn't benefit from 

 21 the fact of whatever the issues they chose to overlook them 

 22 and pay us the amount that we were due with full knowledge 

 23 of all of the issues on the table.

 24 And the question, well, why did they do that? 

 25 Well, we're going to try to find out in discovery, but they 
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  1 shouldn't be able to now benefit by having made those 

  2 payments as they go off to try to sell themselves to 

  3 somebody.  When you think of where do we hit the equities 

  4 and you think about, well, some cases are insolvancy are in 

  5 one place, some may be in another.  In my mind when I've 

  6 read all of those cases in some some are headed in a 

  7 different direction.  What probably drove the decision 

  8 where we review these would be -- the equities of those 

  9 things in terms of who's here doing what and who's really 

 10 likely to be heard while the parties try to sort this all 

 11 out.  

 12 So, to me that's kind of the overriding theme to 

 13 this entire effort and preserving the status quo.

 14 THE COURT: Mr. Bolden.

 15 MR. BOLDEN: Thank you, Your Honor.

 16 Obviously, I disagree with everything that the 

 17 Plaintiffs have indicated to you.

 18 Let me start off by indicating, and I will kind of 

 19 track your questions in response to the Plaintiffs in this 

 20 case.  But I will point out one thing we don't agree on the 

 21 numbers that were just cited by the Washington Hospital 

 22 Center.  We haven't recouped twenty-nine million dollars, 

 23 whatever the total breakdown was, and since we represent 

 24 Charter, I can tell you exactly what we've recouped.

 25 Keep in mind that it is our position that the 
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  1 recoupments for weights as well as coding are mandated by 

  2 law under CMS rights.

  3 THE COURT: I just want to -- those -- the weights 

  4 for -- and you said two -- those are the --

  5 MR. BOLDEN: The basis for the recoupments are for 

  6 the APDRG weights -- 

  7 THE COURT:  Right, okay.

  8 MR. BOLDEN:  -- and the other recoupment basis is 

  9 what we call the NCCI edits or coding.

 10 THE COURT: Okay, I just didn't -- I understand -- 

 11 your argument that the issue with the APDRG weights is not 

 12 whether they get made, but when and how and what process 

 13 has to be filed?  

 14 MR. BOLDEN: Absolutely.  It's all under the law.

 15 And, Your Honor, the other thing about the weights 

 16 which is where the majority of the recoupments come in for 

 17 both Washington Hospital Center and Georgetown have been 

 18 agreed upon between the parties in the contract.

 19 If you look at the health services agreement 

 20 between the parties it is painfully clear that as the 

 21 Department of Health Care Finance makes these weights 

 22 adjustments or fees and services charged and rates upon 

 23 which they're charged the parties have agreed to it.  

 24 Washington Hospital Center and Georgetown aren't 

 25 the only providers. DC Charter has five thousand providers, 
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  1 all of them are getting paid on an ongoing basis, as you 

  2 have indicated.

  3 But the recoupments for the Washington Hospital 

  4 Center are about ten point six three million dollars.  

  5 Eight point six million for the DRG weights and one point 

  6 six seven million for the code, that's just for Washington 

  7 Hospital Center.

  8 In connection to Georgetown we've made a total of 

  9 one point one sixty-six thousand dollars of recoupments 

 10 that's seven hundred ninety-two thousand dollars of the DRG 

 11 weights and that's three hundred and seventy-four thousand 

 12 dollars and some change.  And this is in our to papers for 

 13 the coding, credits.

 14 Now, we haven't just done that with Med Star, 

 15 we've done that with several other providers. Med Star is 

 16 the only provider who is in Court today and the only one 

 17 who has filed suit or objected, that may not be 

 18 dispositive, but that will be persuasive authority to the 

 19 Court.

 20 THE COURT: It's in the affidavit of the special 

 21 deputy.

 22 MR. BOLDEN: You're absolutely right.

 23 Now, what we really have here as His Honor has 

 24 pointed out is that Med Star understands it's general 

 25 creditor, it wants to use this Court and injunctive relief 
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  1 to become a preferred creditor, a special creditor.  It 

  2 wants to be ahead of all of the other providers who we have 

  3 recouped as a matter of law, as a matter of CMS law, as a 

  4 matter of the agreements and they'd like to have 

  5 preferential treatment whether we go into bankruptcy or 

  6 not.  

  7 And by the way we're nowhere near bankruptcy.  If 

  8 you read the total report and you read the audits and I 

  9 negotiate the deal that brought in the rehabilitator.  The 

 10 rehabilitator didn't come in because we weren't paying our 

 11 bills, the rehabilitator came in because our mandatory 

 12 statutory reserves for health care insurance under the law 

 13 were below the twenty or thirty million dollar mark.  There 

 14 is no evidence whatsoever that we haven't been paying our 

 15 bills.

 16 This is a company that gets paid thirty million 

 17 dollars per month and it pays its providers from that 

 18 thirty million.

 19 THE COURT: In his report the special deputy says, 

 20 this recent one says, if Charter doesn't get a new MediCaid 

 21 contract by the middle of January, it's got a big problem.  

 22 It is now the middle of January and do you have a 

 23 new contract with the District of Columbia?  

 24 MR. BOLDEN: Well, we have a contract that ends and 

 25 terminates at the end of April.
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  1 THE COURT: Right.

  2 MR. BOLDEN: We have a letter -- 

  3 THE COURT: But what he was talking about was that 

  4 you basically need to renew or extend that contract by the 

  5 middle of January, and you haven't done that.

  6 MR. BOLDEN: Well, we haven't done that because we 

  7 have a letter agreement with America Care of Health Mercy 

  8 which is a large health care provider, insurance provider 

  9 who has agreed by written agreement to bid on the contract 

 10 that we currently have.  They bid on it with our employees 

 11 and with our executives, the type -- kind of a joint 

 12 arrangement and while I can't tell you what's going to 

 13 happen at the end of April, at the end of November or even 

 14 next year with any company.  But I can tell you with my 

 15 client what's relevant right now is their status right now 

 16 before this Court, because Washington Hospital Center wants 

 17 a TRO right now.  And this Court is bound by the law and 

 18 the process to look at what is the status right now and are 

 19 they entitled to that type of injunctive relief.

 20 Now, you asked about the arbitration clause, okay, 

 21 the arbitration clause is terribly powerful and important, 

 22 not only did the parties agree to it twice, they also 

 23 agreed to the language in the arbitration twice and you'll 

 24 see that the majority of the numbers come out Washington 

 25 Hospital Center so the majority of those numbers that we've 
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  1 recouped are going to be subject to the arbitration clause, 

  2 that I don't think this Court is going to be able to get 

  3 around, and, therefore, the jurisdiction has to be go to 

  4 the arbitrator. Within that arbitration clause it says any 

  5 dispute.  You could read it.

  6 THE COURT: I did.

  7 MR. BOLDEN: But it goes on to say, because this is 

  8 what the parties agreed to, that both parties gave the 

  9 arbitrators the power to --

 10 THE COURT: Let me just repeat, if I didn't make it 

 11 clear it applies to both of you, I've read both sides and I 

 12 don't need you to repeat what's already in your briefs.  I 

 13 understand, as I said, it's a mandatory arbitration 

 14 provision and the Judge's rule is that there's mandatory 

 15 arbitration, the Court stays out, I get that.

 16 MR. BOLDEN: Well, Your Honor, it goes further, and 

 17 you raised question so I'll to why I'm making this point 

 18 with you.  It goes on to give the arbitrator, because you 

 19 asked Plaintiff's Counsel this, it goes on to give the 

 20 arbitrators the power to provide both legal remedies and 

 21 equitable remedies right there in that provision which 

 22 means the Plaintiffs in this case had the opportunity to go 

 23 to arbitration, they ignored it in their brief to you, they 

 24 had to respond to it in our brief, but then their initial 

 25 brief they ignored it.  They've never made a motion for 
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  1 arbitration knowing that in that provision that they agreed 

  2 to twice, they could get equitable relief.  They could get 

  3 a retraining order, and yet they chose this forum versus 

  4 the forum that they're legally bound to.

  5 So, when you talk to the Plaintiffs about issuing 

  6 a TRO, in those cases, those line of cases that say you can 

  7 issue a TRO and then send us to arbitration, we haven't 

  8 moved for arbitration.  We've said that this Court lacks 

  9 subject matter jurisdiction and if there are any claims and 

 10 if the Plaintiffs wants their relief and if they want to 

 11 litigate, they have to arbitrate.  It's painfully clear, 

 12 and under the Uniform Arbitration Act in DC it mandates it, 

 13 it requires it.  I don't think there's anyway around that.

 14 Secondly, Your Honor, the Insurance Commissioner 

 15 as receiver and rehabilitator, as I indicated, is not -- 

 16 there's no imminent bankruptcy despite the reports. We've 

 17 got six million dollars on cash at the end of 2011, fifty-

 18 seven million dollars in admitted assets, based on the 

 19 audit report itself, we've got sixteen million dollars in 

 20 cash, and when we negotiated the deal, the Insurance 

 21 Commissioner had the opportunity under the statute to put 

 22 us in receivership for liquidation or rehabilitation.  It 

 23 was an affirmative decision, because I negotiated the deal, 

 24 for the Insurance Commissioner to choose, by negotiation, 

 25 rehabilitation because there was a growing concern.  There 
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  1 was a contract, they were trying to sell the company, they 

  2 believed that if the Insurance Commissioner took over 

  3 versus the prior owner took over the assets they could, in 

  4 fact, make this sale.

  5 THE COURT: I was expecting argument, I wasn't 

  6 asking you to kind of testify based on your participations 

  7 in negotiations.

  8 MR. BOLDEN: Yes, Your Honor.  I mentioned that 

  9 twice, I should not have done that.  

 10 But in any event, Your Honor, you asked about 

 11 staying this proceeding at any level, clearly the 

 12 rehabilitator has a huge job ahead of it, it's got a lot to 

 13 work with.  But the rehabilitator, clearly any order from 

 14 this Court, whether you believe you lack subject matter 

 15 jurisdiction or not, any order from this Court would 

 16 interfere with those rehabilitation efforts.

 17 The rehabilitator has the power to come in and 

 18 stay this proceeding now.  He still has the power to come 

 19 in to do that, he's chosen not to do, because we don't have 

 20 a temporary restraining order.  We don't have an order that 

 21 is a prejudicial -- have kind of a prejudicial effect on 

 22 his work to rehabilitate to sell the company and to protect 

 23 the hundred and ten thousand poor residents of this City, 

 24 which is his mission to do, to reform or revitalize.

 25 As I indicated, the other providers have not 
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  1 objected, the rehabilitator can still come in and stay 

  2 those proceedings.

  3 And given what the numbers are, given what the 

  4 balance of interest are, given that the, clearly, the 

  5 Defense -- the Defendants in this case would be more harmed 

  6 than Washington Hospital just based on everything we've 

  7 talked about. And the fact that the weights and the coding 

  8 for those recoupments were completed already on January 

  9 7th.  

 10 In order for this Court to issue an order to stay 

 11 anything, you'd be looking at effectively a mandated 

 12 injunction, a mandated injunction because there's nothing 

 13 to restrain us from at this point because we've completed 

 14 the recoupments and those recoupments aren't to, for any 

 15 other reason, rooted in the law.  

 16 If you look closely at our papers and look at the 

 17 attachments and look at the agreement as well as the CMS, 

 18 statutes and regs, it's clear Washington Hospital Center 

 19 and Georgetown had notice of these adjustments, they tried 

 20 to negotiate these adjustments after they were done.  

 21 There's no process for negotiation, or argument or amending 

 22 of contracts in order to do these recoupments, so we're 

 23 legally bound.  If we're legally bound then, and for all 

 24 the reasons I've given you, their efforts to receive a TRO, 

 25 at the close of the arbitration clause, because we're not 
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  1 in bankruptcy so they can't make out irreparable harm, the 

  2 likelihood of success on its merits spell -- because we've 

  3 rooted these in the law as I've indicated the balance of 

  4 interest weigh fairly on the side of the rehabilitator, and 

  5 clearly the rehabilitator and DC Charter will clearly 

  6 suffer more harm than this private entity called Med Star.

  7 It is our position that you ought to dismiss the 

  8 case, the majority of these claims, and if the Plaintiffs 

  9 wants to resolve these issues then they have to resolve 

 10 them in arbitration.  But their claims that are not covered 

 11 by arbitration ought to be dismissed as well because in 

 12 effect they're asking it to be made a preferred creditor, 

 13 they cannot make out the elements of injunctive relief.  

 14 The case law is clear, the facts are clear, and it is our 

 15 position that the Court ought to rule accordingly.

 16 Thank you.  

 17 MR. WAXMAN: Your Honor, if I might -- 

 18 THE COURT: Yeah, it is your motion and I'll give 

 19 you a chance to make a brief response.

 20 MR. WAXMAN: Two comments: One, I believe that what 

 21 Charter's Counsel just said bears repeating, and it's 

 22 important, he said all of the recoupments have been 

 23 completed.  Now, if that's -- now, if that is the case, if 

 24 that is the statement of Charter that there aren't any more 

 25 recoupments, then our request to restrain recoupments with 
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  1 that representation it sounds like it may well have solved 

  2 their problem, they're not going to do it any more and they 

  3 just informed the Court that that's not the case.

  4 The second is if they were going to -- recoupments 

  5 the note of preferential treatment notes a comment.  

  6 Recoupments are taking back money that they determined was 

  7 owed to us and using it for something else.  The something 

  8 else is to prefer somebody else.  The Court asked I don't 

  9 know who they're preferring, how do you know where that 

 10 money is going and what we were saying if that money was 

 11 going to us for services we rendered, you shouldn't be 

 12 preferring anybody else.  So, it's actually the reverse.

 13 Thank you.

 14 MR. BOLDEN: Your Honor, if I may just very 

 15 briefly.  My statement about the recoupments being 

 16 completed had to do with where we are currently.  We have a 

 17 continuing legal obligation going forward on a monthly 

 18 basis to exercise those recoupments, because it's mandated 

 19 by law.

 20 THE COURT: Well, I'd understood your comment the 

 21 way that Mr. Waxman did.  When you say they're completed, I 

 22 mean then it was a meaningless statement.  The recoupments 

 23 that are completed have been completed, but the recoupments 

 24 that have not been completed, we're still going to make, is 

 25 that what you're saying?
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  1 MR. BOLDEN: No, Your Honor.  I'm saying we're 

  2 legally obligated to recoup -- 

  3 THE COURT: No.  The question is you said all of 

  4 the recoupments have been completed.  I've understood that 

  5 you've been through all of the payments you've made in the 

  6 past and any payments that you thought have been overpaid, 

  7 you've now done some accounting adjustment and you're done.

  8 MR. BOLDEN: That is correct.

  9 THE COURT: So, going forward you're not recouping, 

 10 you're just maybe reducing claims based on your 

 11 calculation, but you're not -- recouping goes to kind of 

 12 basically reevaluation of claims you've paid in the past, 

 13 and you said you're done with that.  

 14 MR. BOLDEN: We're done with that.  I have nothing 

 15 more.

 16 THE COURT: Okay.  Well, I've reviewed the papers, 

 17 I've listened carefully to the arguments, I'm clear on not 

 18 making a final rulings on the merits because this case is 

 19 in its early stages, and there's just an application for a 

 20 TRO, I'm going to go through the factors relevant to the 

 21 issuance of a temporary restraining order one by one.

 22 The first involves the likelihood of success.  I 

 23 think maybe one adjective that could be used here is 

 24 uncertain.  I think the interpretation of the contracts, 

 25 the interaction of those contracts with complicated 
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  1 MediCaid reimbursement rules, I think is difficult.  It's 

  2 certainly isn't clear to me based on what I've seen that 

  3 there's a high likelihood of success on the Med Star's 

  4 claim that some of them -- I'm overstating this a bit, but 

  5 that the thirty-day review is all that Charter has to 

  6 review claims and then it can't go back and conduct further 

  7 review after those thirty days are up.  

  8 To the extent the issue is recoupment, that's not 

  9 a continuing problem, as we've just discussed as I 

 10 understand it.  The Charter has completed all the 

 11 recoupments.  It's going to make in addition with respect 

 12 to the APDRG weights which I understand constitutes the 

 13 bulk of the money in dispute.  There's no agreement that 

 14 those adjustments are appropriate, it's more of the 

 15 disagreement about the timing.  But Med Star concedes that 

 16 those modifications ultimately will be adopted.

 17 I don't think I can make a -- either one or two 

 18 things are going on here, either Charter retroactively 

 19 reduced claims it properly paid and should have left alone 

 20 or it turned out that the claims that Med Star committed 

 21 were higher than they should have been under the contract 

 22 and the Medicare rules.  And I, on this record, can't 

 23 really resolve this.  I assume we don't have any position 

 24 to make a finding that Med Star is more likely to prevail 

 25 on that argument than the other.
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  1 I also think the ultimate prospects for success 

  2 are poor on the claims relating to the arbitration to 

  3 Washington Hospital Center because that's subject to a 

  4 mandatory arbitration provision that, among other things, 

  5 gives the arbitrator authority to award equitable remedies.

  6 That makes me, I think, particularly reluctant to intervene 

  7 with respect to that portion of the dispute.  I'm an 

  8 emergency basis and I respect an even stronger showing, you 

  9 know, on the merits and on the equities before I would 

 10 essentially -- I don't know -- I wouldn't be preempting 

 11 what the arbitrators do because whatever I did the 

 12 arbitrators can subsequently change the arbitration 

 13 process.  The arbitration provision contemplates that, you 

 14 know, the arbitrators would be in place even within forty-

 15 five to sixty days.  And I don't think there is a showing 

 16 that the status quo is going to change radically with 

 17 respect to Washington Hospital Center within that time.

 18 The second factor involves irreparable harm to Med 

 19 Star.  The economic losses generally are not irreparable 

 20 injury. I think there is some room under the case law to 

 21 treat economic losses and irreparable injury if the debtor 

 22 is insolvent or otherwise near bankruptcy.

 23 I think the record before me indicates that  

 24 Charter is not insolvent and it's not in bankruptcy or in 

 25 imminent risk of bankruptcy, which I'm going to define as 
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  1 days or weeks.  

  2 There does appear to be a risk based on the report 

  3 that the special deputy submitted in the case before Judge 

  4 Wright, but it is uncertain and not necessarily imminent 

  5 and there's no indication that it would have occurred 

  6 before an arbitration panel to be awarded with respect to 

  7 the Washington Hospital Center, a piece of the dispute and 

  8 award equitable relief.

  9 Moreover, whether or not on I issue a TRO, Med 

 10 Star would be a general unsecured creditor, it wouldn't -- 

 11 the TRO wouldn't benefit Med Star in that respect.  Med 

 12 Star claims irreparable injury from the burden of analyzing 

 13 the recoupments and adjustments.  As best as I can tell 

 14 both parties are going to go through that process of 

 15 analyzing these adjustments particularly because the APDRG 

 16 weights are going to be implemented, if that's the right 

 17 word, sooner than later, and to the extent that Charter 

 18 violated its contractual obligations by making those 

 19 objections -- those changes retroactively and imposed 

 20 administrative cost on Med Star then it should not have 

 21 borne those costs may be recoverable as contract damages.

 22 In addition I think the likelihood of dissipation 

 23 of assets appears to be low because as Med Star contends 

 24 Charter has an intentive -- incentive to maintain assets to 

 25 make its balance sheet look good to potential buyers, and 
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  1 in addition Med Star and other creditors are protected 

  2 against dissipation of assets and other mismanagement by 

  3 the rehabilitator who is charged with running Charter 

  4 responsibly.

  5 The third factor involves the balance of harm.  I 

  6 think the imposition of the issuance of the TRO could have 

  7 substantial adverse effects on Charter's -- particularly 

  8 since it includes what amounts to a freeze on a substantial 

  9 kind of an unknown and an unidentified portion of Charter's 

 10 cash that in turn could adversely effect the prospects for 

 11 a sale to a buyer but could provide any capitalization, a 

 12 result that would hurt Med Star to the extent that Med Star 

 13 needs a viable Charter in order ultimately to recover 

 14 thirty million dollars in alleged damages.  And, in fact, 

 15 I'm inclined to think that the ten thousand dollar bond 

 16 that Med Star opted to post may not come close to 

 17 protecting Charter against the potential harm from an 

 18 issuance of a TRO.

 19 Overall, based on this record, it appears to me 

 20 that the likely harms to Charter from the grant of a TRO 

 21 seem greater than the possible benefits to Med Star and 

 22 that that factor favors Charter.

 23 The fourth and last factor is the public 

 24 interest.  For me the main public interest involves whether 

 25 the hundred and ten thousand dollar MediCaid enrollees are 
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  1 getting the hospital services they need.  As I understand 

  2 it the dispute between the parties does not directly 

  3 implicate their ability to receive hospital services and at 

  4 least for another forty-five to sixty days, as I understand 

  5 it, Med Star will continue to provide hospital services to 

  6 MediCaid beneficiaries.

  7 I think I can take in -- considering the public 

  8 interest -- I can consider kind of the judicial interest on 

  9 efficiency.  I don't think it's in the public interest to 

 10 have this Court oversee the management of Charter's 

 11 accounts and cash particularly when there's a rehabilitator 

 12 who's in place whose appointment was approved by this Court 

 13 to oversee the financial management of Charter. 

 14 I think it would be a substantial burden on the 

 15 Court if I froze any funds, set them to the side, whether, 

 16 to what extent funds can be disbursed and to whom.  

 17 And I remain concerned as my questions at the 

 18 beginning suggested, you know, about how the Court, Charter 

 19 or the rehabilitator could identify, quote, funds that are 

 20 dedicated or properly should be dedicated to payment of Med 

 21 Star's claims, and I understand Med Star not to be in a 

 22 position to identify those funds today.  So, the order is 

 23 unclear -- the requested TRO I think is unclear in its 

 24 application in its scope.

 25 And I think for all those reasons I deny the 
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  1 application for a temporary restraining order.  

  2 I want to look -- I want to think, look a little 

  3 bit more and think a little bit more about the request for 

  4 expedited discovery, I will tell you I'm not inclined to 

  5 grant that motion particularly with the arbitration issue.  

  6 There's no motion for a preliminary injunction that's been 

  7 filed.  I don't know whether Med Star will file one or what 

  8 process it will go through deciding whether or not to do 

  9 so.

 10 And I'm not -- to the extent that Charter has 

 11 moved to dismiss the claims involving Washington Hospital 

 12 Center based on the arbitration provision -- well, let me 

 13 make sure, as I understand it Med Star agrees that the only 

 14 portion of the dispute involving Hospital -- Washington 

 15 Hospital Center the Court has jurisdiction to adjudicate 

 16 involves a request for preliminary injunctive relief 

 17 pending appointment of the arbitrators, is that correct?

 18 MR. WAXMAN: No.  A couple of points.  One, of 

 19 course, the motion to dismiss isn't before the Court 

 20 today.  

 21 The second is what the law says -- 

 22 THE COURT: But I'm just trying to think -- 

 23 MR. WAXMAN: I understand.  What I think the law is 

 24 on the existence of an arbitration clause the case isn't 

 25 dismissed it's actually held in abeyance as it goes off to 
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  1 determine whether there's arbitration and then ultimately 

  2 arbitration.

  3 The reason I raised both of those is I think it's 

  4 -- I understand where the Court is headed, but I think it's 

  5 both procedurally not quite right and substantively you 

  6 wouldn't dismiss the case anyway.

  7 THE COURT: Well, let me put it this way, I would 

  8 encourage you all to talk about where you are and how you 

  9 want to handle the case in terms of arbitration, where 

 10 you're going to go with that, when you're going to nominate 

 11 arbitrators, how you want to proceed on that front.  Will 

 12 the case be stayed, to what extent it would be stayed, how 

 13 is the fact finder is in agreement about the bulk of the 

 14 disputed money involving Washington Hospital Center and 

 15 then what sense could it make to proceed with the portion 

 16 of the case involving Georgetown if the same or very 

 17 similar issues are being resolved in the arbitration.  If 

 18 there's a right to discovery.  

 19 I mean it maybe to the extent that you want 

 20 discovery, I mean it makes sense to talk about discovery if 

 21 you're going to get it in arbitration or if you're going to 

 22 -- I think the information I think was new information, the 

 23 recoupments have been completed, that whatever money 

 24 they're going to recoup, I don't know how that changes kind 

 25 of the dynamics of the situation, if I can call them that, 
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  1 but I think it would make sense for you all, you know, to 

  2 talk.  

  3 I mean at some point I'm going have to -- I guess 

  4 -- I guess what I'm inclined -- because I don't want to -- 

  5 would it make sense for me to hold off on doing anything 

  6 else now until you all have had a chance to talk and maybe 

  7 submit some kind of joint status report and I could 

  8 schedule a status conference?  

  9 MR. BOLDEN: Well, Your Honor, there is a motion 

 10 for partial -- there is a partial motion to dismiss before 

 11 the Court.  The Washington Hospital Center has not 

 12 responded -- has had not an opportunity to respond to it 

 13 yet.

 14 But it is our position is that why belabor it if 

 15 both sides -- I'm not going to put words in their mouth, 

 16 but both sides seem to acknowledge the arbitration 

 17 agreement while ninety or more percent --

 18 THE COURT: I agree.  That's why I suggested that 

 19 you talk about that because if you can talk about -- rather 

 20 than to dismiss that portion of the case, to stay that 

 21 portion, I think Mr. Waxman's point about what the relief 

 22 is.  I mean I don't want to put either side to the burden 

 23 of briefing things if there are things that you all can 

 24 work out, frankly.  I don't want to take my time working 

 25 through the issues.
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  1 I mean if there were -- I take it -- I think both 

  2 sides agree that on there have been continuing negotiations 

  3 between the lawyers and the business people.  Sometimes 

  4 those have gone well and then you've actually reached some 

  5 agreements.  Sometimes they've not gone so well.  And I 

  6 certainly understand Med Star's interest in their 

  7 Georgetown, Washington Hospital Center are both non-profit 

  8 institutions in getting paid.  They've provided real 

  9 service, they've real costs in providing for those services 

 10 and they want to get pay.

 11 I didn't hear Mr. Bolden dispute that you haven't 

 12 gotten paid a dime, you know, for some weeks now.  I 

 13 understand that's an issue for you.  I just don't know if 

 14 there is some room for you all to sit down and figure out a 

 15 way, you know, forward.  It could include on the business 

 16 side, you know, what's going to get paid, what's the 

 17 schedule, what's going to happen with the arbitration, to 

 18 what extent this case is going to go forward, whether 

 19 discovery is going to go forward.

 20 And we're only -- and discovery, we're only 

 21 talking about a couple weeks at this point because you have 

 22 a right to start considering the end of the month?

 23 MR. EDMONDSON: Your Honor, to that point we did 

 24 serve our discovery with our motion to expedite discovery.  

 25 So, we -- the date that we chose for the deposition that we 
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  1 intend to take is within -- it's outside of the thirty days 

  2 of service and the written discovery will be due on 

  3 February 10th and we were asking you to have it moved up to 

  4 the next week, so it is just a matter of few weeks.

  5 THE COURT: Well, like I said I'm not inclined to 

  6 do that. I denied the request for the TRO.  There's no 

  7 preliminary injunction motion pending at this point.  But 

  8 what I want you all to do is just sit down and see if you 

  9 can, granted, move forward.

 10 I can set this for a status hearing.  I'm not here 

 11 next week.  I could do it the week after next for you all 

 12 to submit a joint status report.  I'm open to suggestions.

 13 MR. BOLDEN: Your Honor -- 

 14 THE COURT: I'm trying to do this efficiently for 

 15 everbody.

 16 MR. BOLDEN: May I beg the Court's indulgence and 

 17 confer with my colleague?  

 18 THE COURT: Absolutely.

 19 (Pause in Proceedings.)

 20 MR. WAXMAN: I think what makes sense for both of 

 21 us after the brief discussion is to file a joint status 

 22 report with the Court, perhaps, two weeks, and if we think 

 23 we would value a status conference, we can call the Court 

 24 and, perhaps, the Court would.

 25 THE COURT: Call my chambers and -- 
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  1 MR. WAXMAN: -- come in and -- 

  2 THE COURT: -- we will set it up.

  3 MR. WAXMAN: -- we'll talk about it relatively 

  4 short order after that, and that gives us a little time  

  5 to digest this and work this out.

  6 THE COURT: January 30th.  That's going to be a 

  7 Wednesday.

  8 MR. WAXMAN: Is that for the report or the 

  9 conference?  

 10 THE COURT: No.  You said two weeks for a joint 

 11 status report.

 12 MR. WAXMAN: Right.

 13 THE COURT: So --

 14 MR. WAXMAN: That's fine.

 15 MR. BOLDEN: Yes, Your Honor.

 16 THE COURT: Okay.

 17 MR. BOLDEN: I think January the 30th.  Just the 

 18 report January 30th would be fine.

 19 THE COURT: I actually didn't look at that, but I 

 20 expect the next event on the docket is the initial 

 21 scheduling conference.

 22 THE DEPUTY CLERK: March 22nd.

 23 THE COURT: March 22nd.  I have no desire to bring 

 24 you in.  One of the things you're going to be talking 

 25 about is the schedule and one of the things you might want 
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  1 to address then is, you know, I don't know -- I don't know 

  2 kind of address the issue of arbitration and the claims of 

  3 Washington Hospital Center versus Georgetown, how that all 

  4 works.  I'm quite confident this is not a track one case.  

  5 You know, is it track two?  Is it track three?  But, you 

  6 know, I don't -- there's no Jury demand, is there?  

  7 MR. EDMONDSON: Yes.

  8 THE COURT: There is a Jury demand.  Well, I mean 

  9 -- I mean I encourage you to kind of just think longer, 

 10 longer term.  Okay.

 11 MR. BOLDEN: Thank you, Your Honor.

 12 MR. WAXMAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

 13 (Whereupon, hearing concluded.) 
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